BYLAWS OF

CROFTON VILLAGE SECTION 12 HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

Name and Location

The name of the corporation is CROFTON VILLAGE SECTION 12 HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., hereinafter referred to as the "Association". The principal office of the corporation shall be located at 1164 Wickford Court, Crofton, Maryland 21114, meetings of Members and directors may be held at such places within the State of Maryland as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II

Definitions

- <u>Section 1</u>. <u>Definitions</u>. The following words, when used in this Declaration, shall have the following:
- (a) "Approval" shall mean and refer to the issuance by any public agency of written approval, or any written waiver of approval rights, or a letter of "no objection".
- (b) "Association" shall mean and refer to the Crofton Village Section 12 Homeowners Association, Inc. and its successors and/or assigns.
- (c) "Common Area" shall mean and refer to all real property and improvements thereon owned or leased by the Association or over which the Association has an easement for maintenance, for the use and enjoyment of its Members.
- (d) "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the covenants, conditions, and restrictions and all other provisions set forth in the entire document recorded in the land records for Anne Arundel County, Maryland in Liber ____ at Folio ____, as they may be from time to time amended.
- (e) "Developer" shall mean and refer to the Declarant, The Richards Group of Washington, its successors and assigns; provided, however, that no successor or assign of the developer shall have any rights or obligations of the developer hereunder unless such rights and obligations are specifically set forth in the instrument of succession or assignment or unless such rights and obligations pass by operation of the law.

- (f) "Development Plan" shall mean and refer to the total general scheme of intended use of the land and the property approved by Anne Arundel County, Maryland, as illustrated in Exhibit A attached hereto, as may be amended from time to time.
- (g) "Lot" shall mean a parcel of land, occupied or to be occupied, by a building and its accessory buildings or by group dwellings and their accessory buildings, together with such open spaces required under the provisions of the Anne Arundel County Code (the "Code") having at least the minimum area required by the Code for a lot in the zone in which same is situated; and having its principal frontage on a public street or way. The term "Record Lot" means the land designated as a separate and distinct parcel of land on a legally recorded subdivision plat or in a legally recorded deed filed among the Land Records of Anne Arundel County.
- (h) "Members" shall mean and refer to the Members of the Association, which shall consist of all owners and to every person or entity who holds any class of Membership in the Association.
- (i) "Notice" shall mean and refer to (1) written notice delivered personally or mailed to the last known address of the intended recipient, or (2) notice published at least once each week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper having a general circulation in Anne Arundel County.
- (j) "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of the fee simple title to any lot situated on the property, which is subjected to this Declaration from time to time, including contract sellers, other than Declarant, but excluding those having such interest solely as security for the performance of an obligation.
- (k) "Project" and "Community", as used in this Declaration, shall mean and refer to that certain community being developed by the Declarant in Anne Arundel County, Maryland, known as "Crofton Village Section 12".
- (1) "Quorum of Members" shall mean and refer to the representation by presence or proxy of Members who hold fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding votes of each class of Membership.

ARTICLE III

Meeting of Members

<u>Section 1</u>. <u>Annual Meetings</u>. The first annual meeting shall be held within twelve (12) months from the date of filing of the

Articles of Incorporation of the Association, and each subsequent regular annual meeting of the Members shall be held on the same day of the same month of each year thereafter. If the day for the annual meeting of the Members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following, which is not a legal holiday.

- Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be called at any time by the President or by the Board of Directors, or upon written request of the Members who are entitled to vote one-fourth (1/4) of all of the votes of the Class A Membership.
- Section 3. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the Members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least fifteen (15) days (but not more than sixty (60) days) before such meeting to each member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.
- Section 4. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of Members entitled to cast or of proxies entitled to cast, one-half (1/2) of the votes of each class of Membership shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration or these Bylaws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the Members entitled to vote thereat shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.
- Section 5. Voting. At every meeting of the Members, each Class A member shall have the right to cast one (1) vote for each Class A Membership which he owns on each question. Each of the Class B Members shall have the right, on each question, to cast three (3) votes for each Lot owned by such Class B member. The vote of the Members representing fifty-one percent (51%) of the total of the vote of both classes of the Memberships at the meeting, in person or by proxy, calculated as aforesaid, shall be necessary to decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the question is one upon which, by the express provision of law or of the Articles of Incorporation or of the Declaration or of these Bylaws, a different vote is required, in

which case such express provision shall govern and control. The vote for any Membership which is owned by more than one person may be exercised by any of the co-owners present at any meeting unless any objection or protest by any other owner of such Membership is noted at such meeting. In the event all of the co-owners of any Membership who are present at any meeting of the Members are unable to agree on the manner in which the votes for such Membership shall be cast on any particular question, then such vote shall not be counted for purposes of deciding that question. In the event any Membership is owned by a corporation, then the vote for any such Membership shall be cast by a person designated in a certificate signed by the President or any Vice President of such corporation and attested by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of such corporation and filed with the Secretary of the Association, prior to or during the meeting. The vote for any Membership which is owned by a trust or partnership may be exercised by any trustee or partner thereof, as the case may be, and, unless any objection or protest by any other such trustee or partner is noted at such meeting, the Chairman of such meeting shall have no duty to inquire as to the authority of the person casting such vote or votes. No Class A member shall be eligible to vote, either in person or by proxy, or to be elected to the Board of Directors, who is shown on the books or management accounts of the Association to be more than sixty (60) days delinquent in any payment due the Association.

Section 6. Proxies. At all meetings of Members, each member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the member of his Lot. No proxy shall be valid after eleven (11) months from its date, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.

Section 7. Rights of Mortgagees. Any institutional mortgagee of any Lot who desires notice of the annual and special meetings of the Members shall notify the Secretary to that effect by Registered Mail - Return Receipt Requested. Any such notice shall contain the name and post office address of such institutional mortgagee and the name of the person to whom notice of the annual and special meetings of the Members should be addressed. The Secretary of the Association shall maintain a roster of all institutional mortgagees from whom such notices are received and it shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail or otherwise cause the delivery of a notice of each annual or special meeting of the Members to each such institutional mortgagee, in the same manner, and subject to the same requirements and limitations as are otherwise provided in this

Article for notice to the Members. Any such institutional mortgagee shall be entitled to designate a representative to attend any annual or special meeting of the Members and such representative may participate in the discussion at any such meeting and may, upon his request made to the Chairman in advance of the meeting, address the Members present at any such meeting. Such representative shall have no voting rights at any such meeting. Such representative shall be entitled to copies of the minutes of all meetings of the Members upon request made in writing to the Secretary.

ARTICLE IV

Board of Directors; Selection; Term of Office

<u>Section 1</u>. <u>Number</u>. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of three (3) Directors. Until the first annual meeting of the Members of the Association the Board shall consist of three (3) Directors appointed by the Declarant. Thereafter, the Board of Directors shall consist of appointed and elected Directors.

Section 2. Composition and Term.

- (a) Appointed Director. Appointed Directors shall be approved by the Declarant and shall serve one (1) year terms. They may be reappointed. They need not be Members of the Association. The Declarant may appoint two (2) Directors until such time as its Class B Membership expires. When the Class B Membership expires at least one (1) Director may be appointed by the former Class B Members.
- (b) $\underline{\text{Elected Directors}}$. Elected Directors shall be Owners who are elected in conjunction with annual meetings of the Association, from and by Class A Members.

The term for Elected Directors shall be one (1) year.

Elected Directors seats shall be established by the Board as follows:

- (i) Commencing with the first annual meeting and at subsequent annual meetings, wherein the Declarant has rights as Class B Membership, one (1) seat to be determined by the vote of Class A Members present and voting.
- (ii) upon termination of Class B Memberships, not less than two (2) seats to be determined by the vote of the Class A Members present and voting.

Section 3. Removal. After the first annual meeting of the Members, any Director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Members of the Association. Prior to the first annual meeting of the Members, any director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by the Declarant. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a director, his successor shall be selected by the remaining Members of the Board by a majority and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

<u>Section 4</u>. <u>Compensation</u>. No director shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the Association. However, any director may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

ARTICLE V

Nomination and Election of Directors

Section 1. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors commencing with the first annual meeting of Members, shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two or more Members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting of the Members to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting and such appointment shall be announced at each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may be made from among Members or non-Members.

<u>Section 2</u>. <u>Election</u>. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. At such election the Members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

ARTICLE VI

Meetings of Directors

<u>Section 1</u>. <u>Regular Meetings</u>. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time, by a majority of the Directors,

but at least two (2) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given to each Director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least six (6) days prior to the date named for such meeting.

- Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President on three (3) days' notice of each Director, given personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of any two (2) of the Directors.
- <u>Section 3</u>. <u>Quorum</u>. A majority of the number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board.
- Section $\underline{4}$. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The directors shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all the directors and such approval is filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the directors.
- Rights of Mortgagees. Any institutional Section 5. mortgagee of any Lot who desires notice of the regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors shall notify the Secretary to that effect by Registered Mail - Return Receipt Requested. Any such notice shall contain the name and post office address of such institutional mortgagee and the name of the person to whom notice of the regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors should be addressed. The Secretary of the Association shall maintain a roster of all institutional mortgagees from whom such notices are received and it shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail or otherwise cause the delivery of a notice of each regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors to each such institutional mortgagee, in the manner, and subject to the same requirements limitations, as are otherwise provided in this Article for notice to the Members of the Board of Directors. Any such institutional mortgagee shall be entitled to designate a representative to attend any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors and such representatives may participate in

the discussion at any such meeting and may, upon his request made to the Chairman in advance of the meeting, address the Members of the Board of Directors present at any such meeting. Such representative shall be entitled to copies of the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors upon request made in writing to the Secretary.

Section 6. Fidelity Bonds. The Board of Directors shall require that all officers, Directors and employees of the Association regularly handling or otherwise responsible for the funds of the Association shall furnish adequate fidelity bonds or equivalent insurance against acts of dishonesty. The premiums on such bonds or insurance shall be paid by the Association.

ARTICLE VII

Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors

- Section 1. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have power to:
- (a) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Area and facilities, and the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (b) suspend the voting rights and right to use of the recreational facilities of a member during any period in which such member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association. Such rights may also be suspended after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days for infraction of published rules and regulations;
- (c) exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these By-Laws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration;
- (d) declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors; and
- (e) employ a manager, an independent contractor, or such other employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties.
- <u>Section 2</u>. <u>Duties</u>. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:

- (a) cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the Members at the annual meeting of the Members, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by one-fourth (1/4) of the Class A Members who are entitled to vote;
- (b) employ a manager, an independent contractor, or such other employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties;
 - (c) supervise all officers, agents, and employees of this

Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed;

- (d) fix the amount of the annual assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period;
- (e) send written notice of each assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and
- (f) designate depositories for association funds; designate those officers and agents who shall have authority to withdraw funds from such accounts on behalf of such associations, and cause such persons to be bonded;
- (g) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Areas and facilities, and the personal conduct of the Members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof.
 - (h) cause the common area to be maintained.

ARTICLE VIII

Officers and Their Duties

- <u>Section 1</u>. <u>Enumeration of Officers</u>. The officers of this Association shall be a President and Vice President, who shall at all times be Members of the Board of Directors, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time by resolution create, all of which officers are to be elected by the Board of Directors.
- Section 2. Election of Officers. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the Members; provided that the initial Board of Directors shall elect the first group of

officers at its first organizational meeting.

- <u>Section 3</u>. <u>Term</u>. The officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for one (1) year or until his successor is duly elected and qualified, unless he shall sooner resign, or shall be removed, or otherwise disqualified to serve.
- Section 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.
- Section 5. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time giving written notice to the Board, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- <u>Section 6</u>. <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.
- Section 7. Multiple Offices. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person, but in no event shall the same officer execute, acknowledge or verify any instrument in more than one capacity, if such instrument is required by law, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws to be executed, acknowledged or verified by two (2) or more officers. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one (1) of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this Article.
- Section 8. Duties. The duties of the officers are as follows:

President

(a) The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors; shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments and shall co-sign all promissory notes.

Vice President

(b) The Vice President shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by him or the Board.

Secretary

(c) The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the Members; keep the corporate seal of the Association and affix it on all papers requiring said seal; serve notice of meetings of the Association together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.

Treasurer

(d) The Treasurer shall cause all monies of the Association to be deposited in appropriate bank accounts and disbursed therefrom as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; keep proper books of account, cause an annual audit of the Association books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year; and shall propose an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be represented to the Membership at its regular annual meeting, and deliver a copy of each to the Members.

ARTICLE IX

Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors. The Association shall indemnify every officer and director of the Association against any and all expenses, including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon an officer or director in connection with any action, suit or other proceeding (including the settlement of any such suit or proceeding if approved by the then Board of Directors of the Association) to which he may be made a party by reason of being or having been an officer or director of the Association, whether or not such person is an officer or director at the time such expenses are incurred. The officers and directors of the Association shall not be liable to the Members judgment, Association for anv mistake of nealiaence, otherwise, except for their own individual willful misconduct or bad faith. The officers and directors of the Association shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract or other commitment made by them, in good faith, on behalf of the Association and the Association shall indemnify and forever hold each such officer and director free and harmless against any and

all liability to others on account of any such contract or commitment. Any right to indemnification provided for herein shall not be exclusive of any other rights to which any officer or director of the Association or former officer or director of the Association may be entitled.

ARTICLE X

Committees

The Association shall appoint an Architectural and Environmental Control Committee, as provided in the Declaration, and a Nominating Committee, as provided in these Bylaws. In addition, the Board of Directors shall appoint other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purpose.

ARTICLE XI

Insurance

- <u>Section 1</u>. <u>Insurance</u>. The Board of Directors of the Association shall obtain and maintain, to the extent reasonably available, at least the following:
- (a) A comprehensive policy of public liability insurance with a "Severability of Interest Endorsement" or its equivalent in such amounts and in such forms as may be considered appropriate by the Board of Directors (but not less than One Million and No/100 (\$1,000,000.00) Dollars covering all claims for bodily injuries and/or property damage arising out of a single occurrence.
- (b) Such other policies of insurance, including insurance for other risks of a similar or dissimilar nature and fidelity coverage as required by these Bylaws, as are or shall hereafter be considered appropriate by the Board of Directors.
- <u>Section 2.</u> <u>Limitations.</u> Any insurance obtained pursuant to the requirements of this Article shall be subject to the following provisions:
- (a) All policies shall be written or reinsured with a company or companies licensed to do business in the State where the project is located and holding a rating of "A + AA" or better in the current edition of Best's Insurance Guide.
- (b) Exclusive authority to negotiate losses under said policies shall be vested in the Board of Directors of the Association, or its authorized representative.

- (c) In no event shall the insurance coverage obtained and maintained pursuant to the requirements of this Article be brought into contribution with insurance purchased by the owners of the Lots or their mortgagees, as herein permitted, and any "no other insurance" or similar clause in any policy obtained by the Association pursuant to the requirements of this Article shall exclude such policies from consideration.
- (d) All policies shall provide that such policies may not be cancelled or substantially modified (including cancellation for non-payment of premium) without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to any and all insureds named thereon, including any mortgagee of any Lot who requests such notice in writing.
- (e) All policies shall contain a waiver of subrogation by the insurer as to any and all claims against the Association, the Board of Directors, the Members of the Association and their respective agents, employees or tenants, and of any defenses based upon co-insurance or invalidity arising from the acts of the insured.

ARTICLE XII

Books and Records -- Fiscal Management

- Section 1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association Shall begin on the first day of January every year, except for the first fiscal year of the Association which shall begin at the date of recordation of the Declaration among the Land Records for Anne Arundel County, Maryland. The commencement date of the fiscal year herein established shall be subject to change by the Board of Directors should the practice of the Association subsequently dictate.
- Section 2. Principal Office -- Change of Same. The principal office of the Association shall be as set forth in Article VIII of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association. The Board of Directors, by appropriate resolution, shall have the authority to change the location of the principal office of the Association from time to time.
- <u>Section 3</u>. <u>Books and Accounts</u>. Books and accounts of the Association shall be kept under the direction of the Treasurer in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, consistently applied. The same shall include books with detailed accounts, in chronological order, of receipts and of the expenditures and other transactions of the Association and its administration and shall specify the maintenance and repair

expenses of the Common Areas and community facilities, services required or provided with respect to the same and any other expenses incurred by the Association. The amount of any assessment or portion of any assessment, required for payment of any capital expenditure or reserves of the Association shall be credited upon the books of the Association to the "paid-in Surplus" account as a capital contribution by the Members.

Section 4. Auditing. At the close of each fiscal year, the books and records of the Association shall be audited by an independent Public Accountant whose report shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, consistently applied. Based upon such report, the Association shall furnish the Members and any mortgagee requesting the same with an annual financial statement, including the income and disbursements of the Association, within ninety (90) days following the end of each fiscal year.

ARTICLE XIII

Assessments

As more fully provided in the Declaration, each member is obligated to pay to the Association annual and special assessments which are secured by a continuing lien upon the property against which the assessment is made. Any assessments which are not paid when due shall be delinquent. If the assessment is not paid within ten (10) days after the due date, the assessment shall bear interest from the date of delinquency at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, and the Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same or foreclose the lien against the property, and interest, costs, and reasonable attorneys' fees of any such action shall be added to the amount of such assessment. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by non-use of the Common Area or abandonment of his Lot.

ARTICLE XIV

Amendments

<u>Section 1</u>. These Bylaws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the Members, by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of Members present in person or by proxy, except that if applicable FHA or VA shall have the right to veto amendments while there is Class B Membership.

Section 2. In the case of any conflict between the Articles

of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control.

ARTICLE XV

FHA-VA Approvals -- Rights of Lenders

- Section 1. FHA-VA Approvals. Provided that any Lot subject to the Declaration is then encumbered by a deed of trust or mortgage which is insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Veterans Administration, and, provided further, that there are then Class B Memberships of the Association outstanding, neither the Members, the Board of Directors nor the Association shall, by act or omission, take any of the following actions without the prior written consent or approval of the Federal Housing Administration and the Veterans Administration, as the circumstances may require:
- (a) abandon, partition, dedicate, subdivide, encumber, sell or transfer any of the Common Areas or community facilities directly or indirectly owned by the Association; provided, however, that the granting of rights-of-way, easements and the like for public utilities or for other purposes consistent with the use of the Common Areas and community facilities by the Members of the Association shall not be considered a transfer within the meaning of this Section; or
 - (b) abandon or terminate the Declaration; or
- (c) modify or amend any substantive provision of the Declaration, or of these Bylaws or of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association; or
- (d) merge or consolidate the Association with any other entity or sell, lease, exchange or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of the assets of the Association in any other entity.
- Section 2. Consents by Lenders. Any other provision of the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation to the contrary notwithstanding, neither the Members, the Board of Directors nor the Association shall, by act or omission, take any of the following actions without the prior written consent and approval of all of the holders of the first mortgages of record on the Lots:
- (a) abandon, partition, alienate, release, hypothecate, dedicate, subdivide, encumber, sell or transfer any of the Common Areas or community facilities directly or indirectly

owned by the Association; provided, however, that the granting of rights-of-way, easements and the like for public utilities or for other purposes consistent with the use of the Common Areas and community facilities by the Members of the Association shall not be considered a transfer within the meaning of this Section; or

- (b) abandon or terminate the Declaration; or
- (c) modify or amend any substantive provision of the Declaration, or of these Bylaws or of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association; or
- (d) merge or consolidate the Association with any other entity or sell, lease, exchange or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of the assets of the Association to any other entity; or
- (e) substantially modify the method of determining and collecting assessments against an Owner or his Lot as provided in the Declaration; or
- (f) waive or abandon any scheme of regulations, or enforcement thereof, pertaining to the architectural design or the exterior appearance of buildings or structures on the lots, the exterior maintenance of buildings or structures on the Lots, the maintenance of the Common Area party walks or common fences and driveways, or the upkeep of lawns and plantings within the property; or
- (g) fail to maintain fire and extended coverage on insurable Association Common Area on property on a current replacement cost basis in an amount not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the insurable value (based on current replacement cost); or
- (h) use hazard insurance proceeds for losses to any Association Common Area or property for other than the repair, replacement or reconstruction of such Common Area or property.
- Section 3. Additional Rights of Mortgagees Notice. The Association shall promptly notify the holder of the first mortgage on any Lot for which any assessment levied pursuant to the Declaration, or any installment thereof, becomes delinquent for a period in excess of thirty (30) days and the Association shall promptly notify the holder of the first mortgage on any Lot with respect to which any default in any other provision of the Declaration remains uncured for a period in excess of thirty (30) days following the date of such default. Any failure

to give any such notice shall not affect the validity or priority of any first mortgage on any Lot and the protection extended in the Declaration to the holder of any such mortgage shall not be altered, modified, or diminished by reason of such failure.

No suit or other proceeding may be brought to foreclose the lien for any assessment levied pursuant to the Declaration except after ten (10) days' written notice to the holder of the first mortgage on the Lot which is the subject matter of such suit or proceeding.

Any first mortgage of any Lot may pay any taxes, utility charges or other charge levied against the Common Areas and community facilities which are in default and which may or have become a charge or lien against any of the Common Areas and community facilities and any such first mortgagee may pay any overdue premiums on any hazard insurance policy or secure new hazard insurance coverage on the lapse of any policy, with respect to the Common Areas and community facilities. Any first mortgagee who advances any such payment shall be due immediate reimbursement of the amount so advanced from the Association.

Section 4. Condemnation or Eminent Domain. In the event any part of the Common Areas and community facilities is made the subject matter of any condemnation or eminent domain proceeding, or is otherwise sought to be acquired by any condemning authority, then the Board of Directors of the Association shall give prompt written notice of any such proceeding or proposed acquisition to the holders of all first mortgages of record on the Lots. No provision of the Declaration or the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws of the Association shall entitle any member to any priority over the holder of any first mortgage of record on his Lot with respect to the distribution to such member of the proceeds of any condemnation or settlement relating to a taking of any of the Common Areas and community facilities.

ARTICLE XVI

Interpretation -- Miscellaneous

Section 1. Conflict. These Bylaws are subordinate and subject to all provisions of the Declaration and to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association. All of the terms hereof, except where clearly repugnant to the context, shall have the same meaning as they are defined to have in the Declaration. In the event of any conflict between these Bylaws and the Declaration, the provisions of the Declaration shall control; and in the event of any conflict between these Bylaws

and the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation shall control.

- $\underline{\text{Section 2}}$. $\underline{\text{Notices}}$. Unless another type of notice is otherwise specifically provided for, any and all notices called for in these Bylaws shall be given in writing.
- <u>Section 3</u>. <u>Severability</u>. In the event any provision or provisions of these Bylaws shall be determined to be invalid, void or unenforceable, such determination shall not render invalid, void or unenforceable any other provisions hereof which can be given effect.
- $\underline{\text{Section 4}}$. $\underline{\text{Waiver}}$. No restriction, condition, obligation or provisions of these Bylaws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure or failures to enforce the same.
- <u>Section 5</u>. <u>Captions</u>. The captions contained in these Bylaws are for convenience only and are not a part of these Bylaws and are not intended in any way to limit or enlarge the terms and provisions of these Bylaws or to aid in the construction thereof.
- <u>Section 6</u>. <u>Gender, etc</u>. Whenever in these Bylaws the context so requires, the singular number shall include the plural and the converse, and the use of any gender shall be deemed to include all genders.

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

THAT I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of CROFTON VILLAGE SECTION 12 HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Maryland non-stock, non-profit corporation, and

THAT the foregoing Bylaws constitute the original Bylaws of said Association, as duly adopted on ______, 2001 by Informal Action of the Board of Directors in lieu of an Organizational Meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of said Association this ____ day of ____, 2001.

William Bernhard, Secretary